DUMFRIES TABLE TENNIS CLUB

CONSTITUTION

I Title and Objects

- 1. The club shall be called Dumfries Table Tennis Club.
- 2. The objects of the club are (i) to play the game of Table Tennis, (ii) to encourage and develop interest in the game, (iii) to provide social activities and (iv) to purchase or take on lease premises within which the foregoing objects can be carried out.

II Management

- 1. The management of the club shall be vested in a Committee consisting of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Director of Coaching and others elected as after-mentioned.
- 2. The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and Director of Coaching shall be elected by the general body of members at the Annual General Meeting and shall hold office for three years, and shall then be eligible for election to any of the above offices or to the Committee.
- 3. Members of the Committee, apart from the Office Bearers, shall be elected for a term not exceeding three years by the general body of members at the Annual General Meeting. One-third of their number shall retire annually by rotation, but shall be eligible for re-election.
- 4. Any vacancy occurring in the Committee, whether by refusal to accept office or otherwise, may be filled by the Committee until the next Annual General Meeting.
- 5. The Committee shall have all powers necessary for the full and efficient conduct of the affairs of the Club, and all regulations and bye-laws made, or orders given, by the Committee shall be binding on every member until set aside by a General Meeting.
- 6. The Committee shall, as often as found necessary, hold meetings to deal with all competent business.
- 7. The Committee shall have power to appoint one or more Sub-Committees from among its number to deal with any particular matter or matters which the Committee may wish to delegate to it.
- 8. The President and the Secretary shall each be an ex officio member of all Sub-Committees.
- 9. At all meetings of the Club or of the Committee the President or in his absence the Vice President shall take the Chair, and failing both of these the meeting shall elect a Chairman. At any Sub-Committee meeting the Convenor shall take the Chair.
- 10. The Chairman shall have a deliberate and in the case of equality a casting vote at all meetings of the Club, the Committee or any Sub-Committee.

Last Updated: 3rd April 2017

- 11. The Secretary shall keep a minute book in which (s)he shall regularly record full and correct minutes of all proceedings at meetings of the Club and the Committee thereof, such minutes to be available to the following club or Committee meeting respectively. The Treasurer shall receive and disburse all monies due to or owed by the Club, keep correct accounts and books showing the financial affairs and intromissions of the club.
- 12. All monies received by the Treasurer shall be lodged in the name of the Club in a bank, building society, trust or fund or such other bank as may be fixed by the Committee, and all cheques shall be signed by both the Treasurer and President.
- 13. The Committee shall have power to invest surplus funds in the name of the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer of the club for the time being as Trustees for the Club in investments authorised under and in accordance with the Trusts (Scotland) Acts.
- 14. The accounts and books kept by the Treasurer shall be audited not less than fourteen days prior to the Annual General Meeting by an Auditor appointed by the members of the Club.
- 15. Any action for the recovery of money due to or for the enforcement of any claim made by the Club may be instituted and pursued on behalf of the Club by the Committee in the names of the President and Secretary for the time being.

III Meetings of the Club

- 1. The Annual General Meeting shall be held not later than 30 September in each year, when the Office Bearers and Committee shall be elected, and a duly audited statement of the Club's financial affairs submitted to the meeting.
- 2. The Committee shall have the power to call Special Meetings of the Club and shall be found to call a meeting within fourteen days of receiving a written requisition signed by at least ten members and stating the business proposed to be placed before the said Special Meeting.
- 3. All meetings of the Club shall be called by advertisement in the local press giving at least four days notice.
- 4. At all meetings of the club, twelve shall form a quorum. On matters of finance, only members over the age of 16 shall be entitled to vote.
- 5. The president or any two members of the Committee shall have power at any time to call a meeting of Committee and five shall form a quorum.

IV Membership

1. Membership shall consist of Seniors, Juniors and Cadets according to TTS rules (ie Juniors must be under 18 on 1 January following the start of the season, and Cadets must be under 15 at the same date). Also Country members (outwith 15 miles radius of the club).

Last Updated: 3rd April 2017

- 2. Membership shall be limited to such number as may from time to time be fixed by the Committee.
- 3. Every applicant for admission to membership of the Club must submit an application in the form prescribed by the Committee, signed by the applicant.
- 4. Membership is open to all and no application for membership will be refused on other than reasonable grounds. There will be no discrimination on grounds of race, occupation, disability, sex or religious, political or other opinion.

V Annual Subscriptions

- 1. The annual subscription for Senior and Junior Members, paying in advance, shall be determined at the Annual General Meeting of the Club.
- 2. The annual subscription becomes due on 1 October each year. Any member failing to pay annual subscription by 31 October shall be held to be in arrears and, until payment is made, shall not be entitled to compete in any club competition or exercise any of the privileges of club membership. Any such member may, after seven days notice, be deleted from the roll of members by the Committee but shall nevertheless remain liable for the sum due.

VI Resignations

1. All resignations must be in writing and must be in the hands of the Secretary before the Annual General Meeting, after which each person on the roll shall be held liable for the Annual Subscription and his or her share of the Club's obligations.

VII Property, Effects and Funds of the Club

- 1. The property belonging to the Club shall be vested in the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer for the time being as Trustees ex officiis fir behoof of the Club.
- 2. The Committee shall not at any time incur expenditure of an extraordinary nature beyond the sum of £500 without obtaining the consent of a majority of the members of the Club present and voting at a meeting of which not less than four days notice has been given.
- 3. The property, effects and funds of the Club shall belong equally to the members during membership, and members shall be liable equally for the debts and obligations of the Club, but the right and interests of each member shall be personal and shall expire with membership and shall not be assignable or arrestable by creditors nor pass to executors or legal representatives.
- 4. The Club at any meeting of which due notice has been given, shall have power by a majority of two-thirds of the members present and voting to assess the whole of the membership for payment of such sum equally among them as may be considered necessary for meeting the obligations of the Club, and any member failing to make payment of his or her share of the assessment shall be struck off the role of members, but shall nonetheless remain liable for his or her said share.
- 5. No profits or surpluses will at any time fail to be divided among members and if upon the winding up, dissolution or cessation of the Club for any reason there remains after payment of all liabilities

Last Updated: 3rd April 2017

of the Club any property, effects or funds whatsoever the same shall be given or transferred to some other organisation or organisations having objects similar to the object of the Club, by resolution passed at a General Meeting at or before the time of the dissolution or cessation and insofar as effect cannot be given to such provision then to some charitable object or objects.

Any profits or surpluses generated by the Club activities shall be devoted to maintenance or improvement of Club facilities and promotion of the Club and its objects.

VIII List of Members and Constitution and Rules

1. A copy of the Constitution and Rules of the Club and a list of the members shall be exhibited in the clubhouse.

IX Suspensions and Expulsions

- 1. The Committee shall have power by a majority vote of its entire number to suspend any member whose conduct appears to them to endanger the character, interests or good order of the Club or who acts in defiance of its Constitution of Rules; and at a General Meeting of which due notice has been given the Club shall have power, on a vote by ballot and by a majority of two-thirds of those voting, to expel any such member.
- 2. At least six days before calling any such meeting the Committee shall communicate with the offending member to give him an opportunity of resigning from the Club.

X Alterations of Constitution and Rules

1. Alterations or additions to the Constitution and Rules may be made at any General Meeting of the Club provided that at least fourteen days before such meeting, written notice of the proposed alteration or addition has been given to the Secretary.

Last Updated: 3rd April 2017